MISSOURI LOCAL EXCHANGE AND INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE TARIFF

OF

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

Underlying Carrier: SBC, AllTel Missouri

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of intrastate interexchange and switched local exchange telecommunications services provided by Granite Telecommunications, LLC ("Granite") within the State of Missouri. This tariff is on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission ("Commission"). Copies may be inspected during normal business hours at the Company's principal place of business: 234 Copeland Street, Quincy, Massachusetts 02169.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC operates as a competitive telecommunications company within the State of Missouri.

Issued: April 4, 2006

Issued By:

Effective Date: May 19, 2006

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Filed

Missouri Public
Service Commission

(T)

MISSOURI LOCAL EXCHANGE AND INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE TARIFF

OF

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

Underlying Carrier: SBC

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of intrastate interexchange and switched local exchange telecommunications services provided by Granite Telecommunications, LLC ("Granite") within the State of Missouri. This tariff is on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission ("Commission"). Copies may be inspected during normal business hours at the Company's principal place of business: 234 Copeland Street, Quincy, Massachusetts 02169.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC operates as a competitive telecommunications company within the State of Missouri.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Ouincy Massachusetts 02169

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Cancelled

Filed

Missouri Public
Service Commission

Effective Date: December 2, 2003

WAIVER OF RULES AND REGULATIONS

The following Rules and Regulations have been waived for purposes of offering network services as set forth herein:

Missouri Commission Rules

4 CSR 240-10.020	Depreciation fund income.
4 CSR 240-30.040	Uniform system of accounts.
4 CSR 240-33.030	Inform customers of lowest price.
4 CSR 240.3.545(2)(c)	Posting of Rate Schedules

Missouri Statutes

Uniform System of Accounts.
Just and Reasonable Rates.
Ascertain Property Values.
Depreciation Accounts.
Issuance of Securities.
Acquisition of Stock.
Issuance of Stocks and Debt.
Stock Dividend Payment.
Issuance of Securities, Debts, and Notes.
Reorganizations.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>DESCRIPTION</u> <u>SHEET NUM</u>	IBEK	
Title Sheet	. Title	
Waiver of Rules and Regulations		
Table of Contents	2	
Explanation of Symbols		
Tariff Format		
Application of Tariff		
Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations	7	
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations	. 22	
2.1. Undertaking of Company		
2.2. Limitations		
2.3. Use		
2.4. Liabilities of the Company		
2.5. Equipment and Facilities		
2.6. Customer Responsibilities		
2.7. Interruption of Service		
2.8. Restoration of Service		
2.9. Minimum Service Period		
2.10. Access to Customer's Premises		
2.11. Payments and Billing		
2.12. Cancellation by Customer		
2.13. Cancellation by Company		
2.14. Advanced Payments and Deposits	39	
2.15. Credit	41	
2.16. Access to Carrier to Choice	43	
2.17. Interconnection	44	
2.18. Full Force and Effect	44	
2.19. Credit Limit		
2.20. Access to Telephone Relay Services		
2.21. Directory Listings		
2.22. Universal Emergency Telephone Number Service		
2.23. Missouri Universal Service Fund	46	(T)

Issued: April 21, 2005

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr. Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

LO-2005-0382



Effective Date: May 21, 2005

May 1, 2005

CANCELLED August 27, 2009 Missouri Public Service Commission JL-2010-0049, PSC MO. No. 3 (T)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	SHEET NUMBER
Title Sheet	Title
Waiver of Rules and Regulations	1
Table of Contents	
Explanation of Symbols	4
Tariff Format	
Application of Tariff	6
Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations	7
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations	22
2.1. Undertaking of Company	22
2.2. Limitations	22
2.3. Use	23
2.4. Liabilities of the Company	24
2.5. Equipment and Facilities	
2.6. Customer Responsibilities	
2.7. Interruption of Service	
2.8. Restoration of Service	
2.9. Minimum Service Period	
2.10. Access to Customer's Premises	
2.11. Payments and Billing	
2.12. Cancellation by Customer	36
2.13. Cancellation by Company	
2.14. Advanced Payments and Deposits	39
2.15. Credit	
2.16. Access to Carrier to Choice	
2.17. Interconnection	44
2.18. Full Force and Effect	44
2.19. Credit Limit	
2.20. Access to Telephone Relay Services	44
2.21. Directory Listings	
2.22. Universal Emergency Telephone Number Service	45

Issued: September 8, 2003
Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

TABLE OF CONTENTS, Continued

<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	SHEET NUMBER
Section 3 – Local Exchange Service Descriptions and Rate	es47
3.1. Local Exchange Service Descriptions	47
3.2. Local Exchange Service Rates	
3.3. Integrated Services Digital Network Service Charges	
3.4. Local Exchange Service Area	
Section 4 – Interexchange Service Description and Rates .	73
4.1. Granite Interexchange Services	
4.2. Interexchange Service Charges	74
4.3. Time Periods	

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



CONCURRING CARRIERS

None

CONNECTING CARRIERS

None

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS

None

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

- (C) To signify all other **changes**
- (D) To signify a rate **Decrease**
- (I) To signify a rate **Increase**
- (L) To signify material **relocated** in the Tariff
- (N) To signify a **new** rate or regulation
- (R) To signify a rate **reduction**
- (T) To signify a change in **text** but no change in rate or regulation

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003

December 5, 2003



TARIFF FORMAT

Sheet Numbering – Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the sheet. Sheets are numbered sequentially. However, occasionally, when a new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1

Sheet Revision Numbers – Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each sheet. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd Revised Sheet 14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows in their tariff approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the sheet in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect.

Paragraph Numbering Sequence – There are four levels of paragraph coding. Each level of code is subservient to its next higher level:

2.

2.1.

2.1.1.

2.1.1.1.

Check Sheets – When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff with a cross-reference to the current revision number. When new sheets are added, the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc., remains the same, just revised revision levels on some sheets). The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find if a particular sheet is the most current on file with the Commission.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff schedule sets forth the Service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the furnishing of intrastate interexchange and switched local exchange telecommunications Services offered by Granite Telecommunications, LLC ("Company") to Customers located within the State of Missouri.

The rates and regulations contained in this Tariff apply only to the intrastate telecommunications Services furnished by Company and do not apply, unless otherwise specified, to the lines, facilities, or the services provided by a Local Exchange Carrier or other common carrier for use in accessing the Services of Company. This Tariff does not cover any unregulated service offered by Company. Company will offer any unregulated service in accordance with Company's current price list or contract, whichever applies to the particular customer.

Company may not be deemed to have waived or impaired any right, power, requirement or option reserved by this Tariff (including, but not limited to, the right to demand exact compliance with every term and condition herein), by virtue of any custom or practice of Company at variance with the terms hereof, or any failure, refusal or neglect of Company to exercise any right under this Tariff or to insist upon exact compliance with its terms, or any waiver, forbearance, delay, failure or omission by Company to exercise any right, power or option hereunder.

The rates, rules, terms and conditions contained herein are subject to change pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Missouri Public Service Commission.

This tariff will be maintained and made available for inspection by any Customer at Company's principal business office at Granite Telecommunications, LLC, 234 Copeland Street, Quincy, MA 02169.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



SECTION 1 – TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Agency

For 911 or E911 service, the government agency(s) designated as having responsibility for the control and staffing of the emergency report center.

Alternate Routing ("AR")

Allows E911 calls to be routed to a designated alternate location if: (1) all E911 exchange lines to the primary PSAP (*See* definition of PSAP below.) are busy; or (2) the primary PSAP closes down for a period (night service).

Authorized User

A person, corporation or other entity who is authorized by the Company's Customer to utilize service provided by the Company to the Customer. The Customer is responsible for all charges incurred by an Authorized User.

Automatic Location Identification ("ALI")

The name and address associated with the calling party's telephone number (identified by ANI as defined below) is forwarded to the PSAP for display. Additional telephones with the same number as the calling party's (secondary locations, off premises, etc.) will be identified with the address of the telephone number at the main location.

Automatic Number Identification ("ANI")

A system whereby the calling party's telephone number is identified and sent forward with the call record for routing and billing purposes. E911 Service makes use of this system.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunication

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

ey, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

Effective Date: December 2, 2003

CANCELLED

Business Service

A service which conforms to one (1) or more of the following criteria:

- A. Used primarily for a paid commercial, professional or institutional activity; or
- B. The service is situated in a commercial, professional or institutional location, or other location serving primarily or substantially as a site of an activity for pay; or
- C. The service number is listed as the principal or only number for a business in any telecommunications directory; or
- D. The service is used to conduct promotions, solicitations, or market research for which compensation or reimbursement is paid or provided. However, such use of service, without compensation or reimbursement, for a charitable or civic purpose will not constitute a business use of service unless other criteria apply.

Called Station

The terminating point of a call (i.e., the called number).

Calling Card

A card issued by Company containing such account numbers assigned to its Customer which enables the charges for calls made to be properly billed on a pre-arranged basis.

Central Office

An operating office of the Company where connections are made between telephone exchange lines.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Central Office Line

A line providing direct or indirect access from a telephone or switchboard to a central office. Central office lines subject to PBX rate treatment are referred to as central office trunks.

Change

Includes the rearrangement or reclassification of existing service at the same location.

Channel

A point-to-point bi-directional path for digital transmission. A channel may be furnished in such a manner as the Company may elect, whether by wire, fiber optics, radio or a combination thereof and whether or not by means of single physical facility or route. One 1.544 Mbps Service is equivalent to 24 channels.

Channel Conversion

The termination of 1.544. Mbps Service at a Customer's location with conversion of the digital signal to 24 analog voice grade circuits. Channel Conversion can be furnished by the Customer.

Channel Service Unit ("CSU")

The equipment located at the Customer's premises which terminates each 1.544 Mbps Digital Loop and performs such functions as proper termination of facilities, regeneration of signals, recognition and correction of signal format errors and provides remote loop-back capability.

Commission

Missouri Public Service Commission ("Commission")

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



Communications Systems

Channels and other facilities which are capable of two-way communications between subscriber-provided terminal equipment or telephone company stations, even when not connected to exchange and message toll communications service.

Company

Granite Telecommunications, LLC ("Granite")

Credit Card

A valid bank or financial organization card, representing an account to which the costs of products and services purchased by the card holder may be charged for future payment. Such cards include those issued by VISA or MasterCard.

Disconnect or Disconnection

The termination of a circuit connection between the originating station and the called station or the Company's operator.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Credit Card

A valid bank or financial organization card, representing and account to which the costs of products and services purchased by the card holder may be charged for future payment. Such cards include those issued by VISA or MasterCard.

Customer

The person, firm, corporation or other entity which orders or uses service and is responsible for payment of charges and compliance with tariff regulation.

Customer Premises Equipment ("CPE")

Equipment provided by the Customer for use with the Company's services. CPE can include a station set, facsimile machine, key system, PBX or other communication system.

Dedicated Access

Non-switched access between a Customer's premises and the point of presence of the Company's underlying carrier.

Default Routing ("DR")

When an incoming E911 call cannot be selectively routed due to an ANI failure, garbled digits or other causes, such incoming calls are routed from the E911 Control Office to a default PSAP. Each incoming E911 facility group to the Control Office is assigned to a designated default PSAP.

Demarcation Point

The physical dividing point between the Company's network and the Customer.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Digital

A method of storing, processing and transmitting information through the use of distinct electronic or optical pulses that represent the binary digits (bits) 0 and 1. Digital transmission/switching technologies employ a sequence of discrete, individually distinct pulses to represent information, as opposed to the continuously variable signal of analog technologies.

Direct Inward Dial ("DID")

A service attribute that routes incoming calls directly to stations, by-passing a central answer point.

Direct Outward Dial ("DOD")

A service attribute that allows individual station users to access and dial outside numbers directly.

Disconnect or Disconnection

The termination of a circuit connection between the originating station and the called station or the Company's operator.

Dual Tone Multi-Frequency ("DTMF")

The pulse type employed by tone dial station sets (touch tone).

Emergency Service Number ("ESN")

A unique code, assigned by the Company, used to define specific combinations of police, fire and/or ambulance jurisdictions, or any other authorized agency, which are designated by the Customer.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



E911 Customer

A governmental agency that is the customer of record and is responsible for all negotiations, operations and payment of bills in connection with the provision of E911 service.

E911 Service Area

The geographic area in which the government agency will respond to all E911 calls and dispatch appropriate emergency assistance.

Error

A discrepancy or unintentional deviation by the Company from what is correct or true. An "error" can also be an omission in records.

Exchange

An area, consisting of one or more central office districts, within which a call between any two points is a local call.

Exchange Access Line

A central office line furnished for direct or indirect access to the exchange system.

Exchange Service

The provision to the subscriber of access to the exchange system for the purpose of sending and receiving calls. This access is achieved through the provision of a central office line (exchange access line) between the central office and the subscriber's premises.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



Final Account

A Customer whose service has been disconnected who has outstanding charges still owed to the Company.

Flat Rate Service

The type of exchange service provided at a monthly rate with an unlimited number of calls within a specified primary calling area.

Ground Start

Describes the signaling method between the PBX/key system interface and the Company's switch. It is the signal requesting service.

Handicapped Person

A person who is legally blind, visually handicapped or physically handicapped, under the following definitions from the Federal Register (Vol. 35 No. 126 dated June 30, 1970).

Legally Blind - a person whose visual acuity is 20/200 or less in the better eye with correcting glasses, or whose widest diameter of visual field subtends an angular distance no greater than 20 degrees.

Visually Handicapped - a person whose visual disability, with correction and regardless of optical measurement with respect to legal blindness, are certified as unable to read normal printed material.

Physically Handicapped - a person who is certified by competent authority as unable to read or use ordinary printed materials as a result of physical limitation or a person whose disabling condition causes difficulty with hand and finger coordination and use of a coin telephone.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Holidays

Holidays include New Year's Day (January 1), Independence Day (July 4), Labor Day (the first Monday in September), Thanksgiving Day (the fourth Thursday in November), and Christmas Day (December 25).

Hunting

Routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station is busy.

Incoming Service Group

Two or more central office lines arranged so that a call to the first line is completed to a succeeding line in the group when the first line is in use.

Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN)

ISDN provides integrated voice and/or data communications capability for transmission of voice and/or data and packet switched data signals on an incoming and outgoing basis over a single line.

Interface

That point on the premises of the subscriber at which provision is made for connection of facilities provided by someone other than the Company to facilities provided by the Company.

Interoffice Mileage

The segment of a line that extends between the central offices serving the originating and terminating points.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Interruption

The inability to complete calls, either incoming or outgoing or both, due to Company facilities malfunction or human errors.

LATA

Local Access and Transport Area. The area within which the Company provides local and long distance ("intraLATA") service. For call to numbers outside this area ("interLATA") service is provided by long distance companies.

Leased Channel

A non-switched electrical path used for connection of equipment furnished by the subscriber to equipment furnished by the subscriber or the Company for a specific purpose.

Link

The physical facility from the network interface on an end-user's or carrier's premises to the point of interconnection on the main distribution frame of the Company's central office.

Local Call

A call which, if placed by a Customer over the facilities of the Company, is not rated as a toll call.

Local Calling Area

The area, consisting of one or more central office districts, within which a subscriber for exchange service may make telephone calls without a toll charge.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Local Service

Telephone exchange service within a local calling area.

Loop Start

Describes the signaling between the terminal equipment or PBX/key system interface and the Company's switch. It is the signal requesting service.

Loops

Segments of a line which extend from the serving central office to the originating and to the terminating point.

Kbps

Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second.

Message Rate Service

A type of exchange service provided at a monthly rate with an additional charge for local calling based on the usage of the local network. One completed call is equal to one message.

Move

The disconnection of existing equipment at one location and reconnection of the same equipment at a new location in the same building or in a different building on the same premises.

Multi-Frequency ("MF")

An inter-machine pulse-type used for signaling between telephone company switches, or between telephone company switches and PBX/key systems.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Multiline Hunt

A method of call signaling by which a call placed to one number is subsequently routed to one or more alternative numbers when the called number is busy.

Network Control Signaling

The transmission of signals used in the telecommunications system which perform functions such as supervision (control, status and charging signals), address signaling (e.g. dialing), calling and called number identification, audible tone signals (call progress signals indicating re-order or busy conditions, alerting) to control the operation of switching machines in the telecommunications system.

Network Control Signaling Unit

The terminal equipment furnished, installed and maintained by the Telephone Company for the provision of network control signaling.

Node

The location to which digital channels are routed and where access is provided to such lines and associated equipment for testing.

PBX

A private branch exchange.

Port

A connection to the switching network with one or more voice grade communications channels, each with a unique network address (telephone number) dedicated to the Customer. A port connects a link to the public switched network.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



Premises

The space occupied by a Customer or authorized user in a building or buildings or contiguous property not separated by a public right of way.

Private Branch Exchange Service

Service providing facilities for connecting central office trunks and tie lines to PBX stations, and for interconnecting PBX station lines by means of a switchboard or dial apparatus.

Public Safety Answering Point ("PSAP")

An answering location for E911 calls originating in a given area. A PSAP may be designated as primary or secondary, which refers to the order in which calls are directed for answering. Primary PSAPs respond first; secondary PSAPs receive calls on a transfer basis only and generally serve as a centralized answering location for a particular type of emergency call.

Rate Center

A geographic reference point with specific coordinates on a map used for determining mileage when calculating charges.

Referral Periods

The time frame during which calls to a number which has been changed will be sent to a recording which will inform the caller of the new number.

Resale of Service

The subscription to communications service and facilities by one entity and the reoffering of communications service to others (with or without "adding value") for profit.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



Same Premises

All space in the same building in which one subscriber has the right of occupancy, and all space in different buildings on contiguous property when occupied solely by the same subscriber. Foyers, hallways and other space for the common use of all occupants of a building are considered the premises of the operator of the building.

Selective Routing ("SR")

A feature that routes an E911 call from a Central Office to the designated primary PSAP based upon the identified number of the calling party.

Serving Central Office

The central office from which local service is furnished.

Sharing

An arrangement in which several users collectively use communications service and facilities provided by a carrier, with each user paying a pro-rata share of the communication related costs.

Station

Each telephone on a line and where no telephone associated with the line is provided on the same premises and in the same building, the first termination in station key equipment or a jack for use with a portable telephone.

Subscriber

See "Customer" definition.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



Suspension

Suspension of service for nonpayment is interruption of outgoing service only. Suspension of service at the subscriber's request is interruption of both incoming and outgoing service.

Toll Call

Any call extending beyond the local exchange of the originating caller which is rated on a toll schedule by the Company.

Two Way

A service attribute that includes DOD for outbound calls and can also be used to carry inbound calls to a central point for processing.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



SECTION 2 – RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1. UNDERTAKING OF COMPANY

- 2.1.1. Company's services are furnished for telecommunications originating and/or terminating in any area within the State of Missouri.
- 2.1.2. Company offers resold and facilities-based telecommunications services to Customers for the direct transmission and reception of voice, data, and other types of communications.
- 2.1.3. The Company's services are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.
- 2.1.4. Request for service under this tariff will authorize the Company to conduct a credit search on the Customer. The Company reserves the right to refuse service on the basis of credit history, and to refuse further service due to late payment or nonpayment by the Customer.
- 2.1.5. Company does not process local emergency calls, "911" or operator calls. All calls of this nature will be processed by the Local Exchange Carrier or underlying carrier of the telephone from where the call originates.

2.2. LIMITATIONS

- 2.2.1. Service is offered subject to availability of the necessary facilities and/or service and subject to the provisions of this tariff.
- 2.2.2. The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of facility, service, equipment, telephone number, process or code. All rights, titles and interests remain, at all times, solely with the Company.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



2.2. LIMITATIONS, Continued

- 2.2.3. Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or transfer. All regulations and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all such permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service.
- 2.2.4. The Company may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine whether the terms and conditions of this tariff are being complied with in the installation, operation or maintenance of the Customer's or the Company's facilities or equipment.
- 2.2.5. The Company reserves the right to refuse an application for service by a present or former Customer who is indebted to the Company for service previously rendered pursuant to this tariff until this indebtedness is satisfied.

2.3. USE

- 2.3.1. Service may be used for the transmission of communications by the Customer for any lawful purpose for which it is technically suited.
- 2.3.2. Service may not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any purpose for which any payment or other compensation is received by the Customer, except when the Customer is a duly authorized and regulated common carrier. This provision does not prohibit an arrangement between the Customer, authorized user or joint user to share the cost of service.
- 2.3.3. The name(s) of the Customer(s) desiring to use the service must be set forth in the application for service.
- 2.3.4. The Company strictly prohibits use of the Company's services without payment or an avoidance of payment by the Customer by fraudulent means or devices including providing falsified calling card numbers or invalid calling card numbers to the Company, providing falsified or invalid credit card numbers to the Company or in any way misrepresenting the identity of the Customer.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

(617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003



- 2.3. USE, Continued
- 2.3.5. Recording of telephone conversations of service provided by the Company under this tariff is prohibited except as authorized by applicable federal, state and local laws.
- 2.3.6. Service will not be used to call another person so frequently or at such times of day or in any other manner so as to annoy, abuse, threaten or harass the called party.
- 2.3.7. Service will not be used in any manner which interferes with other persons in the use of their service, prevents other persons from using their service or otherwise impairs the quality of service to other Customers.
- 2.3.8. The Company reserves the right to refuse an application for service made by a present or former Customer who is indebted to the Company for service previously rendered pursuant to this tariff until the indebtedness is satisfied.

2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY

2.4.1. The liabilities of the Company for damages arising out of mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or defects in transmission occurring in the course of furnishing service or other facilities and not caused by the negligence of the Customer, commences upon activation of service and in no event exceeds an amount equivalent to the proportionate charge to the Customer for the period of service during which such mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission occur. For the purpose of computing such amount a month is considered to have thirty (30) days. In no event will the Company be responsible for consequential damages for lost profits suffered by a customer or end user as the result of interrupted or unsatisfactory service.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003



2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued

- 2.4.2. Company is not liable for any act or omission of any other company or companies furnishing a portion of the service.
- 2.4.3. Company shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Customer against:
 - 2.4.3.1. Claims for libel, slander, infringement of copyright or unauthorized use of any trademark, trade name or service mark arising out of the material, data, information or other content transmitted over Company's facilities; and
 - 2.4.3.2. Claims for patent infringement arising from combining or connecting Company's facilities wit apparatus and systems of the Customer; and
 - 2.4.3.3. All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in connection with any service provided by Company.
- 2.4.4. Company is not liable for any defacement of, or damage to, the equipment or premises of a customer resulting from the furnishing of services when such defacement or damage is not the result of the Company's negligence.
- 2.4.5. Company shall not be liable for, and the Customer indemnifies and holds harmless from, any and all loss claims, demands, suits, or other action or liability whatsoever, whether suffered, instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party of person, for any personal injury to, death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, defacement or destruction of the premises of the Customer or any other property, whether owned by the Customer or by others, caused or claimed to have be caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location or use of equipment or wiring provided by Company where such installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, condition, location or use is not the direct result of Company's negligence.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

FLED MO PSG

December 5, 2003

2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued

- 2.4.6. No agents or employees of connecting, concurring or other participating carriers or companies shall be deemed agents or employees of the Company without written authorization.
- 2.4.7. The Company is not liable for any failure of performance hereunder due to causes beyond its control, including, but not limited to, unavoidable interruption in the working of its circuits or those of another common carrier; acts of nature: storms, fire, flood, or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States Government, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction over the company or of any department, agency, Commission, bureau, corporation, or other instrumentality or any one or more of such instrumentality or any one of more of such governmental entities, or of any civil or military authority; national emergencies, insurrections, riots, rebellions, wars, strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties; or notwithstanding anything in this tariff to the contrary, the unlawful acts of the Company's agents and employees, if committed beyond the scope of their employment.
- 2.4.8. The Company shall not be liable for damages or adjustments, refunds, or cancellation of charges unless the Customer has notified the Company, in writing, of any dispute concerning charges, or the basis of any claim for damages, after the invoice is rendered by the company for the call giving rise to such dispute or claim, unless ordered by the Commission pursuant to Missouri law. Any such notice must set forth sufficient facts to provide the Company with a reasonable basis upon which to evaluate the Customer's claim or demands.
- 2.4.9. The Company shall not be liable for any damages, including usage charges, that the Customer may incur as a result of the unauthorized use of its communications equipment. The unauthorized use of the Customer's communications equipment includes, but is not limited to, the placement of calls from the Customer's premises and the placement of calls through Customer-controlled or Customer-provisioned equipment that are transmitted or carried over the Company's network services without the authorization of the Customer. The Customer shall be fully liable for all such charges.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

(617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003



2.4. LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY, Continued

- 2.4.10. The Company shall not be liable for the Customer's failure to fulfill its obligations to take all necessary steps, including obtaining, installing and maintaining all necessary equipment, materials and supplies for interconnecting the terminal equipment or communications system of the Customer, or any third party acting as the Customer's agent, to the Company's network.
- 2.4.11. In the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct, no liability for damages arising from errors, mistakes in or omissions of directory listings, or errors, mistakes or omissions of listings obtainable from the directory assistance operator, including errors in the reporting thereof, will attach to the Company.
- The Company's liability arising from errors or omissions in directory listings will be 2.4.12. limited to the amount of actual impairment to the Customer's service and in no event will exceed one-half (1/2) the amount of the fixed monthly charges applicable to exchange service affected during the period covered by the directory in which the error or omission occurs.
- 2.4.13. As part of providing any private listing or semi-private listing services, the Company will not be liable for failure or refusal to complete any call to such telephone when the call is not placed by dialing a number which includes the number of the party called. The Company will try to prevent the disclosure of unpublished listings, but will not be liable in any manner should such a number be divulged.
- When a Customer with a non-published telephone number places a call to the 2.4.14. Emergency 911 Service, the Company will release the name and address of the calling party, where such information can be determined, to the appropriate local governmental authority responsible for the Emergency 911 Service, upon request of such governmental authority. By subscribing to service under this tariff, the Customer agrees to the release of such information under the above provision.
- 2.4.15. The Company will use reasonable efforts to make available services to a Customer on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of, and compliance by the Customer with, the regulations contained in this tariff. The Company does not guarantee availability by any such date and will not be liable for any delays in commencing service to any Customer.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

> > (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.



2.5. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES

- 2.5.1. The Company will not be responsible for the installation, operation or maintenance of any Customer-provided communications equipment. Where Customer-provisioned equipment is connected to the facilities furnished under this tariff, the responsibility of the Company will be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered pursuant to this tariff. Beyond this responsibility, the Company will not be responsible for:
 - 2.5.1.1. the transmission of signals by Customer-provided equipment or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or
 - 2.5.1.2. the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment; or
 - 2.5.1.3. network control signaling when performed by Customer-provided network control signaling equipment.
- 2.5.2. At the request of the Customer, installation or maintenance may be performed outside of the Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based on cost of the actual labor, material or other costs incurred by or charged by the Company will apply. If installation or maintenance is started during regular business hours, but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

2.6. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES

- 2.6.1. The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for services furnished to the Customer and for all additional charges for calls the Customer elects to continue making.
- 2.6.2. The Customer is responsible for compliance with applicable regulations set forth in this tariff.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

2.6. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES, Continued

2.6.3. The Customer is responsible for establishing its identity as often as necessary during the course of the call or when seeking credits from the Company.

2.7. INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE

- 2.7.1. Credit allowance for interruptions of service which are not due to Company's testing or adjusting, to the negligence of the customer, or to the failure of channels, equipment and/or communications equipment provided by the Customer, are subject to the general liability provisions set forth in Section 2.4., herein. It shall be the obligation of the customer to notify Company of any interruptions of service. Before giving such notice, the Customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not being caused by any action or omission of the Customer, not within the Customer's control.
- 2.7.2. Interruptions caused by Customer-provided or Company-provided automatic dialing equipment are not deemed an interruption of service since the Customer has the option of using the long distance network via local exchange company access.
- 2.7.3. For purposes of credit computation for service, every month shall be considered to have 720 hours. No credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than two hours.
- 2.7.4. The subscriber shall be credited for an interruption of two hours or more at the rate of 1/720th of the monthly charge for the facilities affected for each hour or major fraction thereof that the interruption continues.

Credit formula: Credit - (A/720) X B

A - outage time in hours

B - total monthly charge for affected utility

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

2.8. RESTORATION OF SERVICE

- 2.8.1. The use and restoration of service in emergencies shall be in accordance with part 64, Subpart D of the Federal Communications Commission's Rules and Regulations on file with the Commission, which specifies the priority system for such activities.
- 2.8.2. When a Customer's service has been disconnected in accordance with this tariff and the service has been terminated through the completion of a Company service order, service will be restored only upon the basis of application for new service.

2.9. MINIMUM SERVICE PERIOD

- 2.9.1. The minimum service period is one month (30 days). The Customer must pay the regular listed rate for the service they subscribe to for the minimum period of service. If a Customer disconnects service before the end of the minimum service period, that Customer is responsible for paying the regular rates for the remainder of the minimum service period. When the service is moved within the same building, to another building on the same premises, or to a different premises entirely, the period of service at each location is accumulated to calculate if the Customer has met the minimum period of service obligation.
- 2.9.2. If service is terminated before the end of the minimum period of service as a result of condemnation of property, damage to property requiring the premises to be abandoned, or by the death of the Customer, the Customer is not obligated to pay for service for the remainder of the minimum period.
- 2.9.3. If service is switched over to a new Customer at the same premises after the first month's service, the minimum period of service requirements are assigned to the new Customer if the new Customer agrees in writing to accept them. For facilities not taken over by the new Customer, the original Customer is responsible for the remaining payment for the minimum service period in accordance with the terms under which the service was originally furnished.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

(617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003

JL-2010-0049, PSC MO. No. 3

2.10. ACCESS TO CUSTOMER'S PREMISES

The Customer shall be responsible for making arrangements or obtaining permission for safe and reasonable access for Company employees or agents of the Company to enter the premises of the Customer or any joint user or Customer of the Customer at any reasonable hour for the purpose of inspecting, repairing, testing or removing any part of the Company's facilities.

Issued: September 8, 2003
Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



2.11. PAYMENTS AND BILLING

- 2.11.1. Service is provided and recurring Service charges billed on a monthly (30 day) basis. The billing date is dependent on the billing cycle assigned to the Customer.
- 2.11.2. Non-recurring charges and charges based on actual usage are billed monthly in arrears, except as provided in Section 2.11.4. Flat rate charges will be billed monthly in advance or in arrears.
- 2.11.3. Company will set forth the following on any future residential bills:
 - 2.11.3.1. the number of access lines for which charges are stated;
 - 2.11.3.2. the beginning or ending dates of the billing period for which charges are stated;
 - a statement of the date the bill becomes delinquent if not paid; 2 11 3 3
 - 2.11.3.4. penalty fees and advance payments, if any;
 - 2.11.3.5. the unpaid balance, if any;
 - 2.11.3.6. the amount for basic service;
 - 2.11.3.7. an itemization of the amount due for all other regulated or nonregulated services including the date and duration (in minutes or seconds) of each toll call if such service is provided as an individual service;
 - 2.11.3.8. the amount due for all other regulated or nonregulated services offered at a packaged rate and an itemization of each service included in the package:
 - 2.11.3.9. an itemization of the amount due for taxes, franchise fees, and other fees and/or surcharges which the telecommunications company, pursuant to its tariffs, bills to customers;
 - 2.11.3.10. the total amount due;

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



2.9. PAYMENTS AND BILLING, Continued

- 2.11.3. Company will set forth the following on any future residential bills:, Continued
 - 2.11.3.11. a toll free telephone number where inquiries and/or dispute resolutions may be made for each company with charges appearing on the customer's bill:
 - 2.11.3.12. the amount of a deposit, advance payments and/or interest accrued on a deposit which has been credited to the charges stated; and
 - 2.11.3.13. Any other credits and charges applied to the account during the current billing period.
- 2.11.4. For business customers, only, usage charges may be billed without being detailed as to the duration, time of day, or destination of individual calls.
- 2.11.5. If a Customer accumulates, within any consecutive five (5) day period, usage charges exceeding twice the average monthly usage charges for the previous two (2) monthly billing periods, and the Customer's credit record indicates that satisfactory payment may not be made on this amount, Company may issue a special usage bill. The special bill shall be due twenty-one (21) days from the mailing date of the bill, twenty-one (21) days if delivered.
- Billing is payable upon receipt and past due thirty (30) days after issuance and posting 2.11.6. of invoice. Bills not paid within thirty-one (31) days after the date of posting are subject to a 1.5 percent late payment charge for the unpaid balance.
- 2.11.7. A Customer will not be liable for any late payment charge applicable to a disputed portion of that Customer's bill, so long as the Customer pays the undisputed portion of the bill and enters into bona fide negotiations to resolve the dispute on a timely basis, pursuant to Section 2.11.13.
- 2.11.8. Checks presented in payment for Services and subsequently returned to Company by the Customer's financial institution for "Non-Sufficient Funds" or other reasons will incur a nonrecurring charge of twenty-five dollars (\$25) per Customer per check.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

> > (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.



2.11. **PAYMENTS AND BILLING**, Continued

- 2.11.9. A Customer will be placed on a "cash only" basis upon receipt of two (2) returned checks within a twelve (12)-month period of time. "Cash only" is herein defined as cashier's checks, U.S. currency, or money orders.
- 2.11.10. Receipt of a subsequently dishonored negotiable instrument in response to a notice of discontinuance will not constitute payment of a Customer's account, and Company will not be required to issue additional notice prior to discontinuance. However, three (3) banking days must be allowed for redemption of such instrument.
- 2.11.11. Billing disputes should be addressed to Company's Customer service organization via the Company's toll-free telephone number, (866) 847-1500. Customer service representatives are available from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. Messages may be left for Customer services from 6:01 p.m. to 8:59 a.m. Eastern Standard Time, which will be responded to on the next business day.
- 2.11.12. Any residential billing disputes will be addressed pursuant to 4 CSR 240-33.080.
- 2.11.13. In case of a billing dispute between Customer and Company as to the correct amount of a bill, which cannot be adjusted with mutual satisfaction, Customer may enter the following arrangement:
 - First, Customer requests orally or in writing, and Company will comply 2.11.13.1. with the request, an investigation and review of the disputed amount.
 - 2.11.13.2. The Customer pays the undisputed portion of the bill by the Due By Date shown on the bill or the Service will be subject to disconnection if Company has notified Customer by written notice of such delinquency and impending termination.
 - 2.11.13.3. Company will not disconnect Customer's Service for nonpayment as long as Customer complies with this arrangement.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

2.11. PAYMENTS AND BILLING, Continued

2.11.14. Disputed Bills, Continued

- 2.11.13.4. After the investigation and review are completed by Company as noted in subsection A. above, if Customer elects not to deposit the amount in dispute with Commission, such amount becomes due and payable at once. In order to avoid disconnection of Service, such amount must be paid within seven (7) calendar days after the date Company notifies Customer that the investigation and review are completed and that such payment must be made or Service will be interrupted. However, the Service will not be disconnected prior to the Due By Date shown on the
- 2.11.13.4. If there is still disagreement after the investigation and review by a manager of Company, Customer may appeal to Commission for its investigation and decision.
- 2.11.13.5. The address and telephone number of the Commission are:

Missouri Public Service Commission 200 Madison Street, Suite 100 Jefferson City, MO 65102-0360 Telephone: 573.751.8514

Toll Free: 800.392.4211

Issued: September 8, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. 1

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



2.12. CANCELLATION BY CUSTOMER

- 2.12.1. Business Customers may cancel local service by providing written notice to Company at least thirty (30) days prior to cancellation. Residential Customers may cancel local service by providing written or oral notice to Company at least five (5) days prior to cancellation. Customers may cancel interexchange service by subscribing to another presubscribed interexchange carrier.
- 2.12.2. Customer is responsible for usage charges while still connected to the Company's service and the payment of associated local exchange company charges, if any, for service charges.
- 2.12.3. Any non-recoverable cost of Company expenditures shall be borne by the Customer if:
 - 2.12.3.1. The Customer orders service requiring special facilities dedicated to the Customer's use and then cancels the order before such service begins, before completion of the minimum period or before completion of some the period mutually agreed with the Customer for the non-recoverable portions of expenditures; or
 - 2.12.3.2. Liabilities are incurred expressly on behalf of the Customer by Company and not fully reimbursed by installation and monthly charges; and
 - 2.12.3.3. If based on an order for service and construction has either begun or has been completed, but no service provided.
- 2.12.4. The Customer is responsible for any and all costs incurred in the collection of monies due the Carrier including legal and accounting expenses. Customer is also responsible for recovery costs of Carrier-provided equipment and any expenses required for repair or replacement of damaged equipment.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

2.13. **CANCELLATION BY COMPANY**

- 2.13.1. Company may immediately discontinue furnishing the Service to a business Customer without incurring liability.
 - 2.13.1.1. If there is a condition determined in Company's sole discretion to be hazardous to the Customer, to other Customers of Company, to Company's equipment, to the public or to employees or agents of Company; or
 - 2.13.1.2. If Company deems refusal or disconnection necessary to protect itself or third parties against fraud or to otherwise protect its personnel, agents, facilities or Services; or
 - 2.13.1.3. For non-compliance with and/or violation of any State or municipal law, ordinance or regulation pertaining to Service; or
 - 2.13.1.4. For use of Company's Services for any purpose other than that described in the application; or
 - 2.13.1.5. In the event of Customer use of equipment in such a manner as to adversely affect Company's equipment or the Service to others; or
 - 2.13.1.6. In the event of tampering with the equipment furnished and owned by Company; or
 - 2.13.1.7. In the event of unauthorized or fraudulent use of Service.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

> > (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.



2.13. **CANCELLATION BY COMPANY, Continued**

- 2.13.2. Company may discontinue Service to residential Customers without liability upon ten (10) days written notice to the Customer via first-class mail prior to discontinuance of Service, or hand delivery of such notice to the Customer within ninety-six (96) hours prior to continuance, pursuant to 4 CSR 240-33.070:
 - 2.13.2.1. Nonpayment of delinquent charge except as limited by sections (2), (4) and (5) below;
 - 2.13.2.2. Failure to post a required deposit or guarantee;
 - 2.13.2.3. Unauthorized use to telecommunications company equipment in a manner which creates an unsafe condition or creates the possibility of damage or destruction to such equipment;
 - 2.13.2.4. Failure to company with terms of a settlement agreement;
 - 2.13.2.5. Refusal after reasonable notice to permit inspection, maintenance or replacement of telecommunications company equipment;
 - Material misrepresentation of identity in obtaining telecommunications 2.13.2.6. company service; or
 - 2.13.2.7. As provided by state or federal law.
- The discontinuance of Service(s) by Company pursuant to this section does not 2.13.3. relieve the Customer of any obligations to pay Company for charges due and owing for Service(s) furnished up to the time of discontinuance. The remedies set forth herein are not exclusive, and Company is at all times be entitled to all the rights available to it under law or equity.
- Company may refuse to permit collect calling, calling card, third number billing 2.13.4. which it determines to be fraudulent and/or may limit the use of these billing options or Services.

Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Issued: September 8, 2003 Issued By:

> Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



2.14. ADVANCED PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

- 2.14.1. Company may require a deposit from an applicant for new Service. A deposit may be waived if, according to Company's assessment, the applicant is a satisfactory credit risk. Deposits for any future residential Customers will be collected and maintained pursuant to 4 C.S.R. 240-33.050. Deposit receipts will be furnished upon Customer request pursuant to 4 C.S.R. 240-33.050 (F).
- 2.14.2. Company may require a deposit from an existing business Customer as a condition to the further provision of Service if, according to Company's assessment, the Customer has become a credit risk.
- 2.14.3. Company will calculate the maximum deposit required from a residential applicant for Service or an existing customer by estimating the expected charges for Service for a two (2) month period. Company may adjust the amount of deposit to be held in order to maintain a two (2) month estimated amount when, according to Company's assessment, such adjustment is deemed necessary to adequately secure the account.
- 2.14.4. Customers may satisfy deposit requirements as follows:
 - 2.14.4.1 In cash,
 - 2.14.4.2. By an acceptable bank letter of credit,
 - 2.14.4.3. Through an acceptable third-party guarantee (Residential Service Customers only),
 - 2.14.4.4. Other forms of security acceptable to Company.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



2.14. ADVANCED PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS, Continued

- 2.14.5. Deposits will be refunded to Residential Service Customers, along with accrued interest, when one (1) of the following is met:
 - 2.14.5.1. Service has been terminated or discontinued; or
 - 2.14.5.2. The Customer has established acceptable credit as outlined in the as specified elsewhere in this Tariff; or
 - 2.14.5.3. A Customer is not currently delinquent and has made timely payment of bills for a period of twelve (12) consecutive months. Timely payment means that no more than two (2) bills during the previous twelve (12) months were paid beyond the due date. A refund shall not be made if Service has been suspended for non-payment within the previous twelve (12) months.
- 2.14.6. Deposits will be refunded to Business Service Customers at the sole discretion of Company.
- 2.14.7. When Service has been terminated or disconnected, Company will deduct any and all unpaid amounts from the deposit, and the difference will be refunded, if applicable.
- 2.14.8. Any future residential deposits shall bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) above the prime lending rate as published in the Wall Street Journal. This rate shall be adjusted annually on December 1 using the prime lending rate, as published in the Wall Street Journal on the last business day of September of each year, plus one percent (1%).

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



2.15 CREDIT

- 2.15.1. Company, in order to ensure payment of its charges for Service or for loss of or damage to Company property, will require Applicants and Customers to establish and maintain credit. The establishment or re-establishment of credit as provided in this Section does not relieve an applicant or Customer from compliance with other provisions of this Tariff as to the payment of bills and in no way modifies the Sections regarding disconnection and termination of Service for failure to pay bills due for Service furnished.
- 2.15.2. Company may require any applicant or Customer to establish and maintain credit in one of the following ways:
 - 2.15.2.1. Demonstrating credit satisfactory to Company by providing information pertinent to the applicant's or Customer's credit standing;
 - 2.15.2.2. Providing a suitable guarantee in writing, in a form presubscribed by Company; or
 - 2.15.2.3. Paying a cash deposit pursuant to Section 2.14.

Company may determine, in its sole discretion, whether or not a particular reference or guarantee in writing would be acceptable as a substitute for demonstrating satisfactory credit.

- 2.15.3. Company will extend credit to an applicant for new Service without a deposit if the applicant has verifiable previous or existing telephone service with any telephone company in the United States for at least twelve (12) months, and the payment record is made available and the account history is satisfactory. The payment record of an account will be deemed satisfactory if all the following are met:
 - 2.15.3.1. The previous or existing service was not discontinued for nonpayment, and was not abandoned, within the past twelve (12) months; and
 - 2.15.3.2. The applicant has not been sent denial notices for previous or existing service within the past twelve (12) months; and
 - 2.15.3.3. The applicant has paid for all previous and existing service without referral to a collection agency and without a declaration of uncollectibility; and
 - 2.15.3.4. The applicant provides accurate credit information as appropriate.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

Effective Date: December 2, 2003



2.15 CREDIT, Continued

- 2.15.4. To safeguard its interests, Company may require a Customer to make an advance payment before Services are furnished. The advance payment will not exceed an amount equal to the nonrecurring charge(s) and one (1) month's recurring charges for the Service. In addition, where special construction is involved, the advance payment may also include an amount equal to the estimated nonrecurring charges for the special construction and recurring charges for a period to be set between Company and the Customer (if any). The advance payment will be credited to the Customer's initial bill. An advance payment will be required in addition to a deposit.
- 2.15.5. Customer credit information may be exchanged between telecommunications companies and other utilities. Customer credit information will be retained for two (2) years, unless otherwise required by the Commission.

If an applicant for Service is unable to provide satisfactory credit information, Company may refuse to provide Service unless the applicant furnishes a deposit pursuant to Section 2.14.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



2.16. ACCESS TO CARRIER OF CHOICE

End users of the Company's local service shall have the right to select the interexchange telecommunications service provider (IC) of their choice. The IC should request confirmations/verifications of choice from its Customers no later than the date of submission of its first bill to the Customer. The Company should maintain signed letters of agency or confirmations of choice on file for use in dispute resolution.

2.17 INTERCONNECTION

- 2.17.1. The Customer shall secure all licenses, permits, rights-of-way and other arrangements necessary for interconnection with the Company. In addition, the Customer shall ensure that its equipment and/or system or that of its agent is properly interfaced with the Company's service and the signals emitted into the Company's network are of the proper mode, band-width, power, data speed and signal level for the intended use of the Customer. If the Customer or its agent fails to properly maintain and operate its equipment and/or system of that of its agent, the Company may, upon written request, require the use of protective equipment at the Customer's expense.
- 2.17.2. Service furnished by Company may be interconnected with services or facilities of other authorized communications common carriers and with private systems, subject to the technical limitations established by Company. Any special interface of equipment or facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities of Company and other participating carriers shall be provided at the Customer's expense.
- 2.17.3. Interconnection between the facilities or services of other carriers shall be under the applicable terms and conditions of the other carriers' tariffs. The Customer is responsible for taking all necessary legal steps for interconnecting Customer-provided terminal equipment or communications equipment with Company's facilities. The Customer shall secure all licenses, permits, rights-of-way, and other such arrangements necessary for interconnection.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

JL-2010-0049, PSC MO. No. 3

2.18. FULL FORCE AND EFFECT

Should any provision or portion of this tariff be held by a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this tariff will remain in full force and effect.

2.19. CREDIT LIMIT

The Company may, at any time and at its sole discretion, set a credit limit for any Customer's consumption of services for any monthly period.

2.20. ACCESS TO TELEPHONE RELAY SERVICES

Where required by the Commission, the Company will participate in telephone relay services for handicapped and/or hearing impaired end users, and will comply with all regulations and requirements. The Company shall impose any monthly surcharge or any other related charge upon its local exchange telecommunications subscribers as may be required by state law.

2.21. DIRECTORY LISTINGS

- 2.21.1. The Company does not publish a directory of subscriber listings. The Company, however, does arrange for the Customer's main billing number to be placed in the directory or directories of the dominant local exchange carrier.
- 2.21.2. The rates and regulations specified herein for directory listings apply only to the alphabetical section of the directory. Listings are intended solely for the purpose of identifying subscriber's telephone number and as an aid to the use of telephone service.
- 2.21.3. The listings of subscribers, either without charge or at the rate specified within this tariff for other listings are arranged alphabetically and are not intended for special prominence of arrangement. In accepting listings as requested by subscribers or prospective subscribers, the Company will not be a party to controversies between subscribers as a result of the publication of such listings in the directories.

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued

2.21. DIRECTORY LISTINGS, Continued

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Ouiney Massachusetts 02160

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

Robert T. Hale, Jr.



December 5, 2003

- 2.21.4. Listings must conform to the Company's specifications with respect to the directories. The Company reserves the right to reject listings when, in its sole judgment, such listings would violate the integrity of Company records and directories, confuse individuals using the directory, or when the Customer cannot provide satisfactory evidence that he or she is authorized to do business as requested.
- 2.21.5. The Company reserves the right to limit the length of any listing to one line in the directory by use of abbreviations when, in its sole judgment, the clearness of the listing and the identification of the subscriber is not impaired.
- 2.21.6. Generally, the listed address is the location of the subscriber's residence.

2.22. UNIVERSAL EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER SERVICE (911,E911)

- 2.22.1. This tariff does not provide for the inspection or constant monitoring of facilities to discover errors, defects, or malfunctions in the service, nor does the Company undertake such responsibility.
- 2.22.2. 911 information consisting of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of all telephone customers is confidential. The Company will release such information via the Data Management System only after a 911 call has been received, on a call by call basis, only for the purpose of responding to an emergency call in progress.
- 2.22.3. The 911 calling party, by dialing 911, waives the privacy afforded by non-listed and non-published service to the extent that the telephone number, name, and address associated with the originating station location are furnished to the Public Safety Answering Point.
- 2.22.4. After the establishment of service, it is the Public Safety Agency's responsibility to continue to verify the accuracy of and to advise the Company of any changes as they occur in street names, establishment of new streets, changes in address numbers used on existing streets, closing and abandonment of streets, changes in police, tire, ambulance or other appropriate agencies' jurisdiction over any address, annexations and other changes in municipal and county boundaries, incorporation of new cities or any other similar matter that may affect the routing of 911 calls to the proper Public Safety Answering Point.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

(617) 847-1500

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169



2.22. UNIVERSAL EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER SERVICE, Continued

2.22.5. The Company assumes no liability for any infringement, or invasion of any right of privacy of any person or persons caused, or claimed to be caused, directly or indirectly by the use of 911 Service. Under the terms of this tariff, the Public Safety Agency must agree, (except where the events, incidents, or eventualities set forth in this sentence are the result of the Company's gross negligence or willful misconduct), to release, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from any and all losses or claims whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the Public Safety Agency or by any other party or person, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons or for any loss, damage or destruction of any property whether owned by the Customer or others. Under the terms of this tariff, the Public Safety Agency must also agree to release, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company for any infringement of invasion of the right of privacy of any person or persons, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of 911 Service features and the equipment associated therewith, or by any services furnished by the Company in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address, or name associated with the telephone used by the party or parties accessing 911 Service hereunder, and which arise out of the negligence or other wrongful act of the Public Safety Agency, its user, agencies or municipalities, or the employees or agents of any one of them, or which arise out of the negligence, other than gross negligence or willful misconduct, of the Company, its employees or agents.

2.23. MISSOURI UNIVERSAL SERVICE FUND

- 2.23.1. Company will place on each retail end-user customer's bill a surcharge equal to the Missouri Universal Service fund percentage assessment ordered by the Commission.
- 2.23.2. The surcharge will appear as a separate line item detailed as "Missouri Universal Service Fund"
- 2.23.3. The surcharge percentage will be applied to the total of each customer's charges for intrastate regulated telecommunications services that meet the definition of net jurisdictional revenues at 4 CSR 240-31.010(12).

Effective Date: May 21, 2005

LO-2005-0382 May 1, 2005

Issued: April 21, 2005

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr. Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

CANCELLED August 27, 2009 Missouri Public Service Commission JL-2010-0049, PSC MO. No. 3

(N)

(N)

Issued By:

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, Continued

2.22. UNIVERSAL EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER SERVICE, Continued

The Company assumes no liability for any infringement, or invasion of any right of 2.22.5. privacy of any person or persons caused, or claimed to be caused, directly or indirectly by the use of 911 Service. Under the terms of this tariff, the Public Safety Agency must agree, (except where the events, incidents, or eventualities set forth in this sentence are the result of the Company's gross negligence or willful misconduct), to release, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from any and all losses or claims whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the Public Safety Agency or by any other party or person, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons or for any loss, damage or destruction of any property whether owned by the Customer or others. Under the terms of this tariff, the Public Safety Agency must also agree to release, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company for any infringement of invasion of the right of privacy of any person or persons, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of 911 Service features and the equipment associated therewith, or by any services furnished by the Company in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address, or name associated with the telephone used by the party or parties accessing 911 Service hereunder, and which arise out of the negligence or other wrongful act of the Public Safety Agency, its user, agencies or municipalities, or the employees or agents of any one of them, or which arise out of the negligence, other than gross negligence or willful misconduct, of the Company, its employees or agents.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

3.1. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

3.1.1. Local Service Area

The Company will provide local exchange service in the areas served by AT&T, Inc. (f/k/a/ SBC Missouri.) and AllTel Missouri.

(T) (N)

Company's description of service area in no way compels Company to provide any Service in an area where facilities or other extenuating factors limit Company's ability to provide Service.

3.1.2. Generally

Local Exchange Service provides the Customer with touch tone, voice-grade telecommunications services that can be used to place or receive calls. The Customer may place calls to any local calling station in the local calling area. Additionally, subject to availability, the Customer may access certain features, including, operator services, directory assistance, enhanced 911 (where available to Company), custom calling features, including voice mail (where available) and telecommunications relay services. The Customer may also place calls to toll-free numbers where equipment allows.

3.1.3. Business Local Exchange Service

- 3.1.3.1. The Company offers business customers a choice of either flat-rate or measured service. The Company also offers optional Metropolitan Calling Area (MCA) arrangements that provide two-way expanded local calling to customers on the outskirts of the Kansas City, St. Louis and Springfield metropolitan areas. Also, many customers outside of these metropolitan areas may be subject to a mandatory additive Extended Area Service (EAS) charge to offset the costs of local calling outside of the exchange. However, customers in some of these EAS exchanges may be exempt from the charge if they subscribe to an optional MCA arrangement.
- 3.1.3.2. While flat-rate service provides unlimited local calling, measured service customers incur a charge for each outgoing call. Measured service has no usage allowance, and the usage charges are subject to the standard time-of-day rate periods. On the five recognized holidays of New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas, the Evening rate applies during the Day rate period. Customers may subscribe to an optional detailed billing of all outgoing calls for a nominal fee.

Issued: April 4, 2006

Issued By:

Effective Date: May 19, 2006

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.1. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

3.1.1. Local Service Area

The Company will provide local exchange service in the areas served by SBC Missouri.

Company's description of service area in no way compels Company to provide any Service in an area where facilities or other extenuating factors limit Company's ability to provide Service.

3.1.2. Generally

Local Exchange Service provides the Customer with touch tone, voice-grade telecommunications services that can be used to place or receive calls. The Customer may place calls to any local calling station in the local calling area. Additionally, subject to availability, the Customer may access certain features, including, operator services, directory assistance, enhanced 911 (where available to Company), custom calling features, including voice mail (where available) and telecommunications relay services. The Customer may also place calls to toll-free numbers where equipment allows.

3.1.3. Business Local Exchange Service

- 3.1.3.1. The Company offers business customers a choice of either flat-rate or measured service. The Company also offers optional Metropolitan Calling Area (MCA) arrangements that provide two-way expanded local calling to customers on the outskirts of the Kansas City, St. Louis and Springfield metropolitan areas. Also, many customers outside of these metropolitan areas may be subject to a mandatory additive Extended Area Service (EAS) charge to offset the costs of local calling outside of the exchange. However, customers in some of these EAS exchanges may be exempt from the charge if they subscribe to an optional MCA arrangement.
- 3.1.3.2. While flat-rate service provides unlimited local calling, measured service customers incur a charge for each outgoing call. Measured service has no usage allowance, and the usage charges are subject to the standard time-of-day rate periods. On the five recognized holidays of New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas, the Evening rate applies during the Day rate period. Customers may subscribe to an optional detailed billing of all outgoing calls for a nominal fee.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500





3.1. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

- 3.1.3. Business Local Exchange Service, Continued
 - 3.1.3.3. The optional MCA arrangement provides two-way local calling to/from an outlying exchange of one of the three metropolitan areas. Exchanges eligible for this arrangement in the Kansas City and St. Louis areas have three designations, MCA- 3, MCA-4 and MCA-5. The Springfield area has one designation, MCA-2.
- 3.1.4. The Company offers two types of package discounts, The FEATURE PACKAGE II and Feature Package I, which offer credits off of the normal itemized monthly fees. The FEATURE PACKAGE II has eight variations.

Option 1 offers a discount on all ten of the following features: Auto Redial; Call Blocker; Call Forwarding; Call Return; Call Waiting; Caller ID with Calling Name and Number; Priority Call; Remote Access to Call Forwarding; Selective Call Forwarding; and Three-Way Calling.

Option 2 excludes the Caller ID feature.

Option 3 excludes the Call Waiting feature.

Option 4 excludes Remote Access to Call Forwarding.

Option 5 excludes Caller ID and Call Waiting.

Option 6 excludes Caller ID and Remote Access to Call Forwarding.

Option 7 excludes Call Waiting and Remote Access to Call Forwarding.

Lastly, **Option 8** excludes Caller ID, Call Waiting and Remote Access to Call Forwarding.

When Calling Number and Calling Name are purchased together the customer receives the Caller ID credit.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

3.1. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS, Continued

3.1.4., Continued

Feature Package I has the following four variations:

Option A offers the Personalized Ring feature and any two of The FEATURE PACKAGE II features; **Option B** offers Caller ID and any other two features;

Option C offers any three features;

Option D offers an additional directory listing and any other two features; and **Option E** offers Call Waiting, Caller ID Name and Number or either Call Waiting or Call Waiting ID.

Lastly, customers of both The FEATURE PACKAGE II and Feature Package I automatically receive a 1+ Saver discount of 10 percent on all interstate and intrastate intraLATA Dial Station calls at no additional charge.

3.1.5. Residential Local Exchange Service

The Company offers residential Customers a choice of either flat-rate or measured service. The Company also offers optional Metropolitan Calling Area (MCA) arrangements that provide two-way expanded local calling to Customers on the outskirts of the Kansas City, St. Louis and Springfield metropolitan areas. Also, many Customers outside of these metropolitan areas may be subject to a mandatory additive Extended Area Service (EAS) charge to offset the costs of local calling outside of the exchange. However, Customers in some of these EAS exchanges may be exempt from the charge if they subscribe to an optional MCA arrangement.

While flat-rate service provides unlimited local calling, measured service Customers incur a charge for each outgoing call. Measured service has no usage allowance, and the usage charges are subject to the standard time-of-day rate periods. On the five recognized holidays of New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas, the Evening rate applies during the Day rate period. Customers may subscribe to an optional detailed billing of all outgoing calls for a nominal fee.

The optional MCA arrangement provides two-way local calling to/from an outlying exchange of one of the three metropolitan areas. Exchanges eligible for this arrangement in the Kansas City and St. Louis areas have three designations, MCA-3, MCA-4 and MCA-5. The Springfield area has one designation, MCA-2.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.1. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS, Continued

3.1.5. Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN)

(BRI) Capabilities

The B channel services include circuit switched voice (CVS) and circuit switched data (CSD). Depending upon the Transport Option chosen, usage charges may apply for CVS or CSD functions. The B Channel may also support Packet Switched Data (PSD) on a permanent or on-demand basis. The D channel service includes PSD. The D channel has the same standard capabilities and features as Microlink II, described in the Packet Switched Network service. BRI service may be available with a Link Extension arrangement. The minimum service period is one month.

(PRI) Capabilities

PRI Service employs a 1.544 Mpbs facility typically divided into twenty-three B channels and one D channel. The IntelligentTrunk Interface (IT) provides the PRI termination and transmission path between the central office and the customer's premise. The PRI Port provides connection using a separate facility. The CSV/CSD Transport Option provides for the local use of the Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN). Universal Terminations provides continuity between the IT and the PSTN using central office equipment for Foreign Exchange (FX), Foreign Serving Office (FSO) and TIE Services. The B channel services include circuit switched voice (CVS) and circuit switched data (CSD). Dynamic Channel Allocation (Call -by -call service) provides an option to the dedicated B channel configuration allowing it to be configured to access multiple services on a per-call basis. The minimum service period is one month.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



JL-2010-0049, PSC MO. No. 3

3.1. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS, Continued

- 3.1.6. The Company bills Directory Assistance charges as follows: the Company provides an allowance for telephone numbers that are not in the current directory, such as new listings, non-listed and non-published numbers. However, this allowance does not include telephone numbers in the current directory.
- 3.1.7. The Rate Schedule now includes the monthly and nonrecurring fees for the Company's vertical features, also refered to as Call Management or Easy Options features. With the exception of the Simultaneous Call Forwarding, Hot Line and Warm Line features, the maximum nonrecurring fee to activate any number of these features is \$15.65.

3.1.8. Promotions

The Company may conduct special tests or pilot programs and promotions at its discretion to demonstrate the ease of use, quality of service and to promote the sale of its services. The Company may also waive a portion or all processing fees or installation fees for winners of contests and other occasional promotional events sponsored or endorsed by the Company. From time to time, the Company may waive all processing fees for a Customer. The Company will notify the Commission regarding specific promotions and contests.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003
Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES

3.2.1. Flat Rate - Individual Line

	Busines	S	Residentia	al
	Monthly	y NRC	Monthly	NRC
Rate Class	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
Rate Class A	16.71	51.84	7.49	36.21
Rate Class B	22.92	51.84	9.03	36.21
Rate Class C-Principle	25.50	51.84	10.02	36.21
Rate Class C-Metropolitain	27.78	51.84	11.32	36.21
Rate Class D-Principle	36.50	51.84	11.27	36.21
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 1	37.50	51.84	11.76	36.21
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 2	38.50	51.84	12.41	36.21

3.2.2. Measured Rate Service – Individual Line

Rate Class				
Rate Class A	9.22	51.84	4.12	36.21
Rate Class B	12.60	51.84	4.96	36.21
Rate Class C-Principle	14.39	51.84	5.66	36.21
Rate Class C-Metropolitain	15.33	51.84	6.20	36.21
Rate Class D-Principle	18.14	51.84	6.20	36.21
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 1	18.93	51.84	6.45	36.21
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 2	19.96	51.84	6.85	36.21

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.3. Flat Rate Service – Multiline Key and PBX Trunk

	Busines	S	Residential	
	Monthly	y NRC	Monthly	NRC
Rate Class	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
Rate Class A	27.55	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class B	37.80	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class C-Principle	41.70	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class C-Metropolitain	45.80	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class D-Principle	42.00	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 1	43.50	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 2	45.00	51.84	n/a	n/a

3.2.4. Measured Service – Multiline Key and PBX Trunk

Rate Class				
Rate Class A	9.22	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class B	12.60	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class C-Principle	14.39	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class C-Metropolitain	15.33	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class D-Principle	18.14	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 1	18.93	51.84	n/a	n/a
Rate Class D-Metropolitan 2	19.96	51.84	n/a	n/a

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.5. Direct Inward Dialing

	Busin	ess	Residenti	al
	Month	nly NRC	Monthly	NRC
Rate Class	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
DID Station Numbers				
First 100 DID Numbers	27.00	165.00	n/a	n/a
Additional 100 DID Numbers	27.00	165.00	n/a	n/a
First 10 DID Numbers	5.00	165.00	n/a	n/a
Additional 10 DID Numbers	5.00	10.00	n/a	n/a
DID Trunk Termination			n/a	n/a
Dial-Pulse Signaling	50.00	15.75	n/a	n/a
MF Signaling	50.00	15.75	n/a	n/a
DTMF Signaling	50.00	138.00	n/a	n/a

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.6. EAS Additive Service

	Business			Residentia	ıl
	Monthly	NRC		Monthly	NRC
	<u>(\$)</u>	(\$)		(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
Adrian	1.63	0.00	Adrian	0.64	0.00
Advance	1.04	0.00	Advance	0.40	0.00
Agency	9.08	0.00	Agency	3.63	0.00
Altenburg – Frohna	2.77	0.00	Altenburg - Frohna	1.09	0.00
Antonia (Local and					
MCA)	5.51	0.00	Antonia (Local and MCA)	2.18	0.00
Archie (Local and MCA)	3.12	0.00	Archie (Local and MCA)	1.24	0.00
Armstrong	9.08	0.00	Armstrong	3.63	0.00
Bell City	3.02	0.00	Bell City	1.19	0.00
Benton	4.86	0.00	Benton	1.93	0.00
Billings (Local and					
MCA)	2.53	0.00	Billings (Local and MCA)	0.99	0.00
Bismarck	1.78	0.00	Bismarck	0.69	0.00
Bloomfield	3.87	0.00	Bloomfield	1.54	0.00
Bloomsdale	2.28	0.00	Bloomsdale	0.89	0.00
Bonne Terre	2.03	0.00	Bonne Terre	0.79	0.00
Boonville	0.40	0.00	Boonville	0.15	0.00
Camdenton	2.63	0.00	Camdenton	1.04	0.00
Cape Girardeau	1.04	0.00	Cape Girardeau	0.40	0.00
Cardwell	4.86	0.00	Cardwell	1.93	0.00
Carl Junction	5.01	0.00	Carl Junction	1.99	0.00
Caruthersville	3.53	0.00	Caruthersville	1.39	0.00
Cedar Hill (Local and			Cedar Hill (Local and		
MCA)	2.53	0.00	MCA)	0.99	0.00
Chaffee	3.63	0.00	Chaffee	1.44	0.00
Charleston	2.03	0.00	Charleston	0.79	0.00
Chesterfield (Local and			Chesterfield (Local and		
MCA)	2.53	0.00	MCA)	0.99	0.00

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.6. EAS Additive Service, Continued

	Business			Residentia	ıl
	Monthly	NRC		Monthly	NRC
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>		(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
Clarksville	5.36	0.00	Clarksville	2.13	0.00
Clever (Local and MCA)	8.33	0.00	Clever (Local and MCA)	3.32	0.00
Deering	9.08	0.00	Deering	3.63	0.00
DeKalb	8.48	0.00	DeKalb	3.37	0.00
Delta	5.51	0.00	Delta	2.18	0.00
DeSoto (Local and MCA) 1.78	0.00	DeSoto (Local and MCA)	0.69	0.00
Dexter	1.39	0.00	Dexter	0.54	0.00
East Prairie	1.14	0.00	East Prairie	0.45	0.00
Eldon	1.39	0.00	Eldon	0.54	0.00
Elsberry	0.54	0.00	Elsberry	0.20	0.00
Essex	5.36	0.00	Essex	2.13	0.00
Eureka (Local and MCA)	4.62	0.00	Eureka (Local and MCA)	1.83	0.00
Farmington	0.89	0.00	Farmington	0.35	0.00
Fayette	1.88	0.00	Fayette	0.74	0.00
Fenton (Local and MCA)	1.39	0.00	Fenton (Local and MCA)	0.54	0.00
Festus (Local and MCA)	1.29	0.00	Festus (Local and MCA)	0.50	0.00
Fisk	6.25	0.00	Fisk	2.48	0.00
Flat River	3.63	0.00	Flat River	1.44	0.00
Gideon	4.27	0.00	Gideon	1.68	0.00
Glasgow	1.88	0.00	Glasgow	0.74	0.00
Gravois Mill	2.53	0.00	Gravois Mill	0.99	0.00
Gray Summit (Local and			Gray Summit (Local and		
MCA)	2.77	0.00	MCA)	1.09	0.00
Greenwood (Local Only)	0.30	0.00	Greenwood (Local Only)	0.10	0.00
Harvester (Local Only)	2.13	0.00	Harvester (Local Only)	0.84	0.00
Hayti	4.86	0.00	Hayti	1.93	0.00
Herculaneum (Local and			Herculaneum (Local and		
MCA)	2.13	0.00	MCA)	0.84	0.00
Higbee	6.25	0.00	Higbee	2.48	0.00

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.6. EAS Additive Service, Continued

	Business			Residentia	l
	Monthly	NRC		Monthly	NRC
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>		(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
High Ridge (Local and			High Ridge (Local and		
MCA)	2.53	0.00	MCA)	0.99	0.00
Hillsboro (Local and					
MCA)	3.63	0.00	Hillsboro (Local and MCA)	1.44	0.00
Holcomb	6.75	0.00	Holcomb	2.68	0.00
Hornersville	4.27	0.00	Hornersville	1.68	0.00
Imperial (Local and					
MCA)	3.27	0.00	Imperial (Local and MCA)	1.29	0.00
Jackson	3.12	0.00	Jackson	1.24	0.00
Joplin	0.40	0.00	Joplin	0.15	0.00
Kennett	1.88	0.00	Kennett	0.74	0.00
Lake Ozark - Osage					
Beach	4.62	0.00	Lake Ozark - Osage Beach	1.83	0.00
Leadwood	1.54	0.00	Leadwood	0.59	0.00
Lilbourn	4.37	0.00	Lilbourn	1.73	0.00
Louisiana	0.64	0.00	Louisiana	0.25	0.00
Malden	1.29	0.00	Malden	0.50	0.00
Manchester (Local and			Manchester (Local and		
MCA)	1.54	0.00	MCA)	0.59	0.00
Marston	9.08	0.00	Marston	3.63	0.00
Maxville (Local and					
MCA)	3.87	0.00	Maxville (Local and MCA)	1.54	0.00
Moberly	0.54	0.00	Moberly	0.20	0.00
Monett	1.04	0.00	Monett	0.40	0.00
Montgomery City	1.14	0.00	Montgomery City	0.45	0.00
Morehouse	8.09	0.00	Morehouse	3.22	0.00
Nevada	0.64	0.00	Nevada	0.25	0.00
New Franklin	3.12	0.00	New Franklin	1.24	0.00
New Madrid	2.63	0.00	New Madrid	1.04	0.00

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.6. EAS Additive Service, Continued

	Business			Residential	
	Monthly	NRC		Monthly	NRC
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>		(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
Nixa	6.25	0.00	Nixa	2.48	0.00
Oak Ridge	9.08	0.00	Oak Ridge	3.63	0.00
Old Appleton	8.48	0.00	Old Appleton	3.37	0.00
Oran	4.02	0.00	Oran	1.59	0.00
Pacific (Local and MCA)	4.52	0.00	Pacific (Local and MCA)	1.78	0.00
Paynesville	9.08	0.00	Paynesville	3.63	0.00
Perryville	0.64	0.00	Perryville	0.25	0.00
Pierce City	3.63	0.00	Pierce City	1.44	0.00
Pocahontas - New Wells	9.08	0.00	Pocahontas - New Wells	3.63	0.00
Pond (Local and MCA)	8.33	0.00	Pond (Local and MCA)	3.32	0.00
Poplar Bluff	0.79	0.00	Poplar Bluff	0.30	0.00
Portageville	1.54	0.00	Portageville	0.59	0.00
Qulin	5.61	0.00	Qulin	2.23	0.00
Republic	3.53	0.00	Republic	1.39	0.00
Risco	9.08	0.00	Risco	3.63	0.00
Rushville	8.23	0.00	Rushville	3.27	0.00
St. Charles (Local and			St. Charles (Local and		
MCA)	0.79	0.00	MCA)	0.30	0.00
St. Joseph	0.64	0.00	St. Joseph	0.25	0.00
St. Marys	9.08	0.00	St. Marys	3.63	0.00
Ste. Genevieve	1.14	0.00	Ste. Genevieve	0.45	0.00
San Antonio	9.08	0.00	San Antonio	3.63	0.00
Scott City	1.73	0.00	Scott City	0.69	0.00
Senath	7.99	0.00	Senath	3.17	0.00
Sikeston	0.54	0.00	Sikeston	0.20	0.00
Smithville (Local Only)	2.03	0.00	Smithville (Local Only)	0.79	0.00
Trenton	1.63	0.00	Trenton	0.64	0.00

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.6. EAS Additive Service, Continued

	Business			Residential	
	Monthly	NRC		Monthly	NRC
	(\$)	(\$)		(\$)	<u>(\$)</u>
Tuscumbia	5.61	0.00	Tuscumbia	2.23	0.00
Union	1.04	0.00	Union	0.40	0.00
Valley Park (Local and			Valley Park (Local and		
MCA)	2.53	0.00	MCA)	0.99	0.00
Versailles	0.79	0.00	Versailles	0.30	0.00
Wardell	4.27	0.00	Wardell	1.68	0.00
Ware (Local and MCA)	9.08	0.00	Ware (Local and MCA)	3.63	0.00
Webb City	1.78	0.00	Webb City	0.69	0.00
Wyatt	5.26	0.00	Wyatt	2.08	0.00

3.2.7. Local Usage Charges

	Business	Residential
Day Period	1st Min Addl min	1st Min Addl min
Band A (0 - 14 Miles)	0.0400 0.0100	0.04 0.0100
Band B (15 - 28 Miles)	$0.0500 \ 0.0200$	0.05 0.0200
Band C (29 + Miles)	0.0600 0.0300	0.06 0.0300
Evening Period		
Band A (0 - 14 Miles)	$0.0320 \ 0.0080$	0.03 0.0080
Band B (15 - 28 Miles)	0.0400 0.0160	0.04 0.0160
Band C (29 + Miles)	0.0480 0.0240	0.05 0.0240
Night Period		
Band A (0 - 14 Miles)	$0.0260 \ 0.0065$	0.03 0.0065
Band B (15 - 28 Miles)	0.0325 0.0130	0.03 0.0130
Band C (29 + Miles)	0.0390 0.0195	0.04 0.0195

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.8. Miscellaneous Service Charges

	<u>Busine</u>	SS	Residential		
	Monthly	NRC	Monthly NR		
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	
Touch-Tone	0.00	0.00			
Hunting, Per Line/Trunk	0.00	5.50	0.00	5.50	
End User Common Line (EUCL)					
Individual Line	5.29	0.00	5.29		
Multiline Key/PBX Trunk	5.29	0.00	5.29		
Federal Universal Service Fee					
Single Line	0.51	0.00	0.51		
Multiline	0.59	0.00			
PBX	0.83	0.00			
Directory Assistance (10)					
Per Call	0.63	0.00	0.63		

3.2.9. Optional MCA Arrangements

3.2.9.1. Flat Rated Line

24.80	0.00	12.35	0.00
46.75	0.00	21.55	0.00
70.70	0.00	32.50	0.00
21.75	0.00	11.45	0.00
24.80	0.00	12.35	0.00
46.75	0.00	21.55	0.00
70.70	0.00	32.50	0.00
	46.75 70.70 21.75 24.80 46.75	46.75 0.00 70.70 0.00 21.75 0.00 24.80 0.00 46.75 0.00	46.75 0.00 21.55 70.70 0.00 32.50 21.75 0.00 11.45 24.80 0.00 12.35 46.75 0.00 21.55

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.9. Optional MCA Arrangements, Continued

3.2.9.2. Measured Rate Line

	Busine		Reside	
	Monthly	NRC	Monthly	NRC
Exchange	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
K3 Exchange (MCA-3)		5.00	6.80	4.00
K4 Exchange (MCA-4)	25.70	5.00	11.85	4.00
K5 Exchange (MCA-5)	38.90	5.00	17.90	4.00
P2 Exchange (MCA-2)	11.95	5.00	6.30	4.00
S3 Exchange (MCA-3)	13.65	5.00	6.80	4.00
S4 Exchange (MCA-4)	25.70	5.00	11.85	4.00
S5 Exchange (MCA-5)	38.90	5.00	17.90	4.00
3.2.10 Vertical Features				
<u>Feature</u>				
Call Waiting	8.00	15.65	8.00	7.75
Call Forwarding (Variable)				
Standard	6.45	15.65	3.49	7.75
Selective	4.95	15.65	2.50	7.75
Speed Calling				
8-Number Capacity	3.75	15.65	3.49	7.75
30-Number Capacity	3.50	15.65	6.55	7.75
Three-Way Calling	4.95	15.65	3.49	7.75
Priority Call	3.70	15.65	2.50	7.75
ComCall (Intercom)	N/A	N/A		
Fixed Call Forwarding				
Busy	3.00	15.65	0.75	7.75
No Answer	3.00	15.65	0.75	7.75
Busy No Answer	4.00	15.65	1.00	7.75
Remote Access	2.75	15.65	1.00	7.75
Simultaneous Call Forwarding	4.35	26.50	4.35	7.75

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.10 Other Features:

		Business		Residential	
		Monthly	NRC	Monthly NRC	
		<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
	Auto Redial	4.95	15.65	3.49	7.75
	Call Return	4.95	15.65	4.40	7.75
	Call Blocker	4.95	15.65	3.49	7.75
	Personalized Ring (Dependent #)				
	One Additional Number	6.00	15.65	4.00	7.75
	Two Additional Numbers				
	First Number	6.00	15.65	4.00	7.75
	Second Number	2.00	0.00	2.00	7.75
	Call Transfer Disconnect	15.00	15.65	n/a	
3.2.11	Calling Identification				
	Anonymous Call Rejection	2.00	15.65	2.04	7.75
	Caller ID				
	Calling Number Delivery	9.10	15.65	7.00	7.75
	Calling Name Delivery	9.10	15.65	7.00	7.75
	Call Waiting	5.40	15.65	1.08	7.75
	Call Waiting Options	1.05	15.65	0.50	7.75
3.2.12.	Per Use Features				
	Auto Redial	0.58	0.00	0.58	
	Call Return	0.71	0.00	0.71	
	Three-Way Calling	0.93	0.00	0.93	
	Call Trace	6.00	0.00	6.99	

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: October 23, 2003



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.13 Message Telecommunications Service (MTS) Rates:

	Business		Residential	
	Day		Day	
	FIRST A	DD'L.	FIRST	ADD'L.
	MINUTE MI	NUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
Mileage				
ALL	0.2800 0	.2800	0.25	0.25
	Evening		Evening	
	FIRST A	DD'L.	FIRST	ADD'L.
	MINUTE MI	NUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
	0.1940 0	.1940	0.20	0.2000
	Night		Night	
	FIRST A	DD'L.	FIRST	ADD'L.
	MINUTE MI	NUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
	0.1940 0	.1940	0.15	0.1500

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.14 Operator Assisted Calling, Surcharges

	Business	Residential
	Per Call	Per Call
<u>Surcharges</u>	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
Directory Assistance		
Private Phones	0.63	0.63
Public Phones	0.00	0.00
Calling Card		
Non-Automated	1.50	1.50
Fully-Automated	0.45	0.45
Semi-Automated	0.90	0.90
Operator-Assisted		
Non-Automated	1.50	1.50
Fully-Automated	0.99	0.99
Semi-Automated	1.25	1.25
Person-to-Person		
Non-Automated	3.30	3.30
Semi-Automated	2.80	2.80
Payphone charge	0.30	0.30

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.2. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE RATES, Continued

3.2.15. Miscellaneous Charges

3.2.15.1.	Returned Check Charge, per occurrence	\$25.00
3.2.15.2.	Dial Around Surcharge, per call	\$00.30
3.2.15.3.	Missouri TRS/TDD, per line, per month	\$00.07

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

3.3. INTEGRATED SERVICES DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) SERVICE CHARGES

3.3.1. Basic Rate Interface, Each

		Monthly	NRC
		<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
	Unlimited Usage		
	Month to Month	48.95	400.00
	I Year Contract	45.50	200.00
	2 Year Contract	45.50	N/A
3.3.2.	Miscellaneous Surcharges		
	End User Common Line Charge		
	Per B Channel Activated		
	Single B Channel	5.29	N/A
	Multiple B Channel	5.29	N/A
	End User Port Charges		
	Per BRI	1.59	N/A
	Federal Universal Service Fee		
	Per BRI	0.51	N/A
	Port Recovery Charge	0.14	N/A
	PICC, Per BRI	0.00	N/A

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.3. INTEGRATED SERVICES DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) SERVICE CHARGES, Continued

3.3.3. Service Capability

	Monthly	NRC
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
Package A (10 Hours of Usage)	N/A	52.25
Each Additional Minute	0.04	N/A
Package B (80 Hours of Usage)	18.00	52.25
Each Additional Minute	0.02	N/A
Packet Switch Data (PSD)		
Per Permanent B Channel	45.00	N/A
Per On-Demand B Channel	25.00	N/A
Per D Channel	5.00	N/A

3.3.4. Optional Features

CSV/CSD		
Additional Call Offering	10.10	N/A
Additional End Point/Telephone		
Number	0.50	0.50
Automatic Callback	4.00	11.00
Automatic Recall	4.00	6.50
Call Forwarding Don't Answer	3.00	N/A
Call Forwarding Interface Busy	3.00	N/A
Call Forwarding Variable	4.35	N/A
CSV/CSD		
Calling Number Delivery	8.50	6.50
Customer Originated Trace,		
Per Activation	8.00	5.00
Delayed & Abbreviated Ring	6.00	N/A
Distinctive Ringing	6.00	N/A
Hunt Group for CSD	2.80	N/A
Hunt Group for CSV	2.80	N/A
Hunt Group Transfer for CSD	1.00	N/A

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.3. INTEGRATED SERVICES DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) SERVICE CHARGES, Continued

3.3.4. Optional Features, Continued

	Monthly (\$)	NRC (<u>\$)</u>
Message Waiting Indicator	N/A	N/A
Remote Access to Call Forwarding	2.75	N/A
Secondary Only Telephone Number	10.10	N/A
Selective Call Forwarding	4.35	14.00
Selective Call Rejection	4.00	10.00
Six-Way Conference Calling	6.95	N/A
Speed Call Long	8.70	N/A
Speed Call Short	4.35	N/A
Three-Way Conference Calling	4.35	N/A
CSV/CSD Feature Packages		
Basic EKTS Feature Package	12.00	N/A
CACH EKTS Feature Package	15.00	N/A
PSD		
Additional End Point		
Telephone Number	0.50	0.50
Closed User Group (CUG)	5.00	N/A
Hunt Group for PSD	2.80	0.50
Incoming Calls Barred	0.50	0.50
Local Charge Prevention	0.50	N/A
Outgoing Calls Barred	0.50	0.50
Permanent Virtual Circuit (PVC)	2.00	N/A

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.3. INTEGRATED SERVICES DIGITAL NETWORK (ISDN) SERVICE CHARGES, Continued

3.3.4. Optional Features, Continued

	Monthly NR	
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
Link Extension Charges		
Link Extension Arrangement, Per BRI		
Link Extension Equipment	36.00	N/A
Link Extension Facility	8.80	N/A

3.3.5. Change Charges

	Monthly	NRC
	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
Addition/Change to Optional Feature(s)		
Per Channel	N/A	14.50
Change of Service Capability, Per BRI	N/A	14.50

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



December 5, 2003

CANCELLED

RC EXCHANGE RC EXCHANGE RC

SECTION 3 - LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES, Continued

3.4 LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE AREA

EXCHANGE RC EXCHANGE

	. –				_			
Adrian		A	Advance	A	Agency	A	Altenburg	A

Adrian	A	Advance	A	Agency	A	Altenburg	A
Antonia (S4)	A	Archie (K5)	A	Argyle*	A	Armstrong	A
Ash Grove (P2)*	A	Beaufort	A	Bell City	A	Belton (K2)*	DM2
Benton	A	Billings (P2)	A	Bismarck	A	Bloomfield	A
Bloomsdale	A	Blue Spgs. (K2)*	DM2	Bonne Terre	В	Boonville	В
Bowling Grn.*	A	Bridgeton (S2)*	DM2	Brookfield*	A	Camdenton	В
Campbell*	A	Cape Girardeau	В	Cardwell	A	Carl Junction	A
Carrollton*	A	Carthage*	В	Caruthersville	A	Cedar Hill (S5)	В
Center*	Α	Chaffee	Α	Charleston	A	Chstrfld. (S3)	В
Chillicothe*	В	Clarksville	A	Clever (P2)	A	Climax Spgs.*	A
Creve Cr. (S2)*	DM2	Deering	A	DeKalb	A	Delta	A
DeSoto (S5)	В	Dexter	В	Downing*	A	E. Indpdn. (K2)*	DM2
East Prairie	A	Edina*	A	Eldon	В	Elsberry	A
Essex	A	Eureka (S4)	В	Excelsior (K4)	В	Fair Grv. (P1)*	CM
Farley (K3)*	A	Farmington	В	Fayette	A	Fenton (S3)	В
Ferguson (S1)*	DM1	Festus (S5)	В	Fisk	A	Flat River	В
Florrisant (S2)*	DM2	Frankford	A	Fredericktown*	A	Freeburg*	A
Fulton*	В	Gideon	A	Gladstone (K1)	DM1	Glasgow	A
Grain.Vly. (K3)	Α	Gravois Mills	В	Gray Smt. (S5)	A	Greenwd. (K3)	В
Hannibal*	В	Harvester (S4)	В	Hayti	A	Herculnm. (S4)	A
Higbee	A	High Rdg. (S4)	В	Hillsboro (S5)	A	Holbomb	A
Hornersville	A	Imperial (S3)	В	Indepdnc. (K1)*	DM1	Jackson	В
Jasper*	Α	Joplin	В	Kansas City*	DP	Kennett	В
Kirksville*	В	Kirkwood (S2)*	DM2	Knob Noster*	В	Ladue (S1)*	DM1
Lake Ozark	В	Lamar*	A	LaMonte*	A	Lancaster*	A
Leadwood	A	Lee's Smt. (K2)*	DM2	Liberty (K2)*	DM2	Lilbourn	A
Linn*	A	Lockwood*	A	Louisiana	A	Macks Creek*	A
Malden	A	Manchstr. (S3)	В	Marble Hill*	A	Marceline*	A
Marionvl. (P2)*	A	Marshall*	В	Marston	A	Maxville (S3)	В

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.4. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE AREA, Continued

EXCHANGE	RC	EXCHANGE	RC	EXCHANGE	RC	EXCHANGE	RC
Mehlville (S1)*	DM1	Meta*	A	Mexico*	В	Moberly	В
Monett	В	Mntgmry. City	A	Morehouse	A	Nashua (K2)*	DM2
Neosho*	В	Nevada	В	New Franklin	A	New Madrid	A
Nixa (P1)	CM	Oak Ridge	A	Oakville (S2)*	DM2	Old Appleton	A
Oran	A	Overland (S1)*	DM1	Pacific (S5)	В	Parkville (K1)*	DM1
Patton*	A	Paynesville	A	Perryville	В	Pierce City	A
Pocohontas	A	Pond (S4)	В	Poplar Bluff	В	Prtg. Sioux (S3)	*A
Portageville	A	Puxico*	A	Qulin	A	Raytown (K1)*	DM1
Republic (P1)	CM	Rchmnd. (K5)*	В	Richwoods*	A	Risco	A
Riverview (S1)*	DM1	Rogersvl. (P1)*	CM	Rushville	A	St. Charles (S3)	В
St. Clair*	В	St. Joseph	В	St. Louis*	DP	St. Marys	В
Ste. Genevieve	В	San Antonio	A	Sappngtn. (S1)*	DM1	Scott City	A
Sedalia *	В	Senath	A	Sikeston	В	Slater	A
Smithvl. (K-3)	A	South KC (K1)*	DM1	Spnsh. Lk. (S2)*	DM2	Springfield*	CP
Stanberry*	A	Strafford (P1)*	CM	Tfny. Sgs. (K2)*	DM2	Trenton	A
Tuscumbia	A	Union	В	Vly. Park (S3)	В	Versailles*	A
Vienna*	A	Wlnt. Grv. (P2)*	A	Wardell	A	Ware (S5)	A
Washington*	В	Webb City	В	Wbstr. Gr. (S1)*	DM1	Wellsville*	A
Westphalia*	A	Wyatt	A				
Rate Class A			A				
Rate Class B			В				
Rate Class C-P	rincip	ole	CP				
Rate Class C-N	/letrop	oolitain	CM				
Rate Class D-F	rincip	ole	DP				
Rate Class D-N	Metro	politan 1	DM1				
Rate Class D-N	/etrop	politan 2	DM2	,			

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



3.4. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE AREA, Continued

An "*" exchange notation indicates that an additive Extended Area Service (EAS) is not applicable. An alphanumeric code in parentheses reflects that the exchange is in one of the three metropolitan areas of the state. The letter "K" refers to Kansas City, "P" to Springfield and "S" to St. Louis. The number portion reflects the Metropolitan Calling Area (MCA) designation of each exchange. In the Kansas City and St. Louis areas, MCA-1 and MCA-2 are the innermost exchanges to the CCMIs, abbreviated as K1, K2, S1 and S2. In the Springfield area MCA-1 are the innermost exchanges, abbreviated as P1. The remaining exchanges with an alphanumeric code are outside of the actual metropolitan exchange area. For an additive monthly charge, customers may subscribe to an optional MCA arrangement that offers two-way local calling to/from all other metropolitan exchanges.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500



(N)

3.5. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE AREA, ALLTEL

AllTel exchanges are considered Rate Class A exchanges.

Albany	Aldrich	Allendale	Bellflower	Bolivar
Coffey	Crocker	Clubb	Dixon	Doniphan
Eolia	Fairdealing	Fair Play	Fairview	Florence
Gallatin	Grandin	Grant City	Greenville	Holliday
Halfway	Iberia	Jameson	Laclede	Liberal
Madison	Martinsburg	Mendon	Middletown	Milan
Mindenmines	Morrisville	Myrtle	Naylor	Neelyville
New Hartford	Olney	Oxly	Patterson	Pattonsburg
Piedmont	Pleasant	Hope	Polk	Ponder Purdy
Rothville	Silex	St. Elizabeth	Stark City	Stockton
Stotts City	Stover	Sumner	Union Star	Vandalia
Verona	Wappapello Pa	rk Wheaton	Williamsville	Winston

Pursuant to AllTel Missouri P.S.C. Tariff No. 2, Section 27 See, http://www.alltel.com/corporate/pdf/mo/207lcl.pdf

(N)

Issued: April 4, 2006

Issued By:

Effective Date: May 19, 2006 Robert T. Hale, Jr. Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

(617) 847-1500



CANCELLED

SECTION 4 – INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES

- 4.1. GRANITE INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES
- 4.1.1. The Company provides interexchange services throughout the State of Missouri.
- 4.1.2 Service Descriptions
 - 4.1.2.1. **Granite Switched Access Service** is a switched access service, offering users outbound 1 plus and inbound, long distance telecommunications services. Rates are based on the subscribers' cumulative monthly long distance billing.
 - 4.1.2.2. Granite Dedicated Access Service is a dedicated access service, offering users both outbound 1 plus and in bound, long distance telecommunications services over dedicated local access connections to the carriers' point of presence. This service is designed for subscribers with high traffic volumes, whose traffic volumes justify the additional costs of dedicated access facilities.
 - 4.1.2.3. Granite Travel Card is a calling card service enabling Switched Access Service subscribers to place calls from any touch tone phone in the U.S. Travel Card calls are billed at the Company's rates and appear on the subscriber's monthly long distance bill.

Issued: September 8, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.
Granite Telecommunications, LLC
234 Copeland Street
Quincy, Massachusetts 02169
(617) 847-1500

December 5, 2003

Effective Date: October 23, 2003



SECTION 4 – INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS AND RATES

4.2. INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE CHARGES

Monthly service charges per account are based on the following schedule:

4.2.1. Granite Switched Access Service - (Outbound)

	Dayt	Daytime		ng	Nigl	ht
	Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l
	30 Sec.	6 Sec.	30 Sec.	6 Sec.	30 Sec.	6 Sec.
Intrastate	\$.0495	\$.0099	\$.0495	\$.0099	\$.0495	\$.0099

4.2.2. Granite Switched Access Service - (Inbound)

	Daytime		Eveni	Evening		nt
	Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l
Monthly Calling	30 Sec.	6 Sec.	30 Sec.	6 Sec.	30 Sec.	6 Sec.
	\$.0495	\$.0099	\$.0495	\$.0099	\$.0495	\$.0099

4.2.3. Granite Dedicated Access Outbound Service

Da	Daytime		ng	Nigl	ht
Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l
30 Sec	. 6 Sec.	30 Sec.	6 Sec.	30 Sec.	
\$.0395	\$.0079	\$.0395	\$.0079	\$.0395	\$.0079

4.2.4. Granite Dedicated Access Inbound Service

	Daytime	Eve	Evening		ht
Init	ial Add'l	Initial	Add'l	Initial	Add'l
30 \$		30 Sec.	6 Sec.	30 Sec.	6 Sec.
\$.03	95 \$.0079	\$.0395	\$.0079	\$.0395	\$.0079

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By:

Robert T. Hale, Jr.

Granite Telecommunications, LLC

234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500



INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE CHARGES, Continued 4.2.

Granite Travel Card Service 4.2.5.

Access Charge Per Call	\$0.50
Rate Per Minute	\$0.20

4.2.6. Directory Assistance

Rate Per Access \$0.85

4.2.7. **Granite Prepaid Calling Card Service**

Rate Per Minute	\$0.25
Surcharge Per Call	\$0.50

Operator Assisted Calling Services 4.2.8.

	Business	Residential
	Per Call	Per Call
Surcharges	<u>(\$)</u>	<u>(\$)</u>
Calling Card		
Non-Automated	1.50	1.50
Fully-Automated	0.45	0.45
Semi-Automated	0.90	0.90
Operator-Assisted		
Non-Automated	1.50	1.50
Fully-Automated	0.99	0.99
Semi-Automated	1.25	1.25
Person-to-Person		
Non-Automated	3.30	3.30
Semi-Automated	2.80	2.80
Payphone charge	0.30	0.30

These surcharges are in addition to the applicable per minute rates above.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003

Issued By: Robert T. Hale, Jr. Granite Telecommunications, LLC

> 234 Copeland Street Quincy, Massachusetts 02169

(617) 847-1500



4.3. **TIME PERIODS**

The application periods for the service are:

	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thur	Fri	Sat	Sun	
8:00 AM to 4:59 PM	Day	Day	Day	Day	Day	Eve	Eve	
5:00 PM to 10:59 PM	Eve							
11:00 PM to 7:59 AM	Night							

Night Rate applies to selected holidays (New Year's Day, July 4, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas). On these holidays the Night Rate applies all day, unless a lower rate would normally apply.

Issued: September 8, 2003 Effective Date: December 2, 2003 Robert T. Hale, Jr.

December 5, 2003 Granite Telecommunications, LLC 234 Copeland Street

Quincy, Massachusetts 02169 (617) 847-1500

